Medieval

Limerick
500-1500

The history of Limerick stretches back to its
establishment by the Vikings as a walled city on King's
Island in 812, and the granting of Limerick’s city charter
in 1197.

The original pre-Viking and Viking era settlement on
King's Island was known as Inis Sibhtonn and Inis an
Ghaill Duibh.

The earliest provable settlement dates from 812; but
earlier settlements in the area surrounding King's Island
are traceable. Antiquity's map-maker, Ptolemy,
produced in 150 AD the earliest map of Ireland,
showing a place called "Regia” at the same site as King's
Island.

Saint Munchin, (Mainchin mac Setnai) the first bishop of
Limerick died in 652, indicating the city was a place of
some note. In 812, Danes sailed up the Shannon and
pillaged the town but were forced to flee when the Irish
attacked and killed many of their number.

The Annals of Ulster record a Viking in Limerick in 845
AD. Permanent settlement had begun by 922. In that
year a Viking jarl or prince called Thorir Helgaso led the
Limerick fleet on raids along the River Shannon. Two
years later, the Dublin vikings attacked Limerick, but
were driven off.

The last Norse king of Limerick was Ivar of Limerick, an
enemy of Mathgamain mac Cennétig and later his
famous brother Brian Boru. He and his allies were
defeated by the Dal gCais, and after slaying lvar, Brian
Boru annexed Norse Limerick to make it the new
capital of his kingdom.

Brian Boru's sons were usually called Kings of north
Munster. In 1164, Donnchad mac Briain became King of
Munster. His successful reign founded monasteries and
nunneries, and in bestowing his Limerick Gothic palace to
the church he styled himself King of Limerick.

The arrival of the Normans in 1173 changed everything.
Domnall Moér Ua Briain, the last “King of Limerick”, burned
the City to the ground in 1174 to keep it from the hands of
the new invaders. The Normans, under Prince John,
captured the area in 1195. In 1197 granted the city its first
charter, and its first Mayor, Adam Sarvant, ten years before
London. The castle, built on the orders of King John was
completed around 1300.

Limerick prospered as a port and trading centre. The city
opened a mint in 1467. A 1574 document prepared for the
Spanish ambassador attests to its wealth:

Limerick is stronger and more beautiful than all the other
cities of Ireland, well walled with stout walls of hewn
marble...there is no entrance except by stone bridges, one
of the two of which has 14 arches, and the other eight ...
for the most part the houses are of square stone of black
marble and built in the form of towers and fortresses.

In the 15th and 16th centuries, Limerick became a
city-state isolated from the principal area of effective
English rule -the Pale.

Credits for information go to: King John's Castle, Limerick
Civic Trust, Limerick City Museum & St Mary's Cathedral.
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